
Clark College

BOT Meeting

Wednesday, February 5, 2020 5:00pm (PST)

GHL 213



II. Introductions - Interim President Fowler-Hill

A. #1 - December 18, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes

B. #2 - January 13, 2020 Special Board Meeting Minutes

C. #3 - January 16, 2020 Special Board Meeting Minutes

D. #4 - January 21, 2020 Special Board Meeting Minutes

E. #5 - New BAS Degree

F. #6 - Reserves and Fund Balances

A. Columbia Tech Center Property Map.docx - Page 51
 

G. #7 - C-Tran/PacTrust

A. 12.18.19 BOT Minutes DRAFT.docx - Page 4

A. 1.13.2020 Special BOT Minutes DRAFT.docx - Page 9
 

A. 1.16.2020 Special BOT Minutes DRAFT.docx - Page 10
 

A. 1.21.2020 Special BOT Minutes DRAFT.docx - Page 11
 

A. BAS-Teaching Statement of Need Clark College.docx - Page 12
 

A. Reserves and Fund Balances.docx - Page 49
 

III. Action Items - Consent Agenda - Chair Jacobsen

B. WPEA - Dee Harris

C. ASCC - Evans Kaame

D. Foundation - Lisa Gibert

A. AHE - Suzanne Southerland

A. WPEA Report.docx - Page 55
 

A. ASCC Report.docx - Page 56
 

V. Constituent Reports

A. Student Affairs Presentation - Kim Brewer and Victoria Walters,
Enrollment Navigators

VII. President's Report - Interim President Fowler-Hill

I. Call To Order/Agenda Review - Chair Jacobsen

A. Transforming Lives Winner - Jorge Maravilla

B. DRAFT - letter from BOT.docx - Page 53
 

IV. Audience Statement - Chair Jacobsen
Audience statements will be limited to two minutes each.

A. Foundation Report.pdf - Page 59
 

VI. Reports from Board Members - Chair Jacobsen

Board of Trustees Agenda, Wednesday, February 5, 5:00pm in GHL 213

Page 2 of 75



A. January Scorecards.pdf - Page 67
 

C. Scorecards

A. Student Success - Jovan Merceron

B. Program Presentation - Dalila Paredes, Director of MESA

B. Enrollment Report.pdf - Page 75
 

VIII. Next Meeting
The next special meeting of the Board of Trustees is currently scheduled
for Friday, February 14, 2020 from 11:30am-1:30pm in the President's
Conference Room, BRD 102.

The next regular meeting of the Board of Trustees is currently scheduled
for Wednesday, February 26, 2020 at 5pm in the Ellis Dunn Community
Room, GHL 213.

IX. Executive Session - Chair Jacobsen
An Executive Session may be held for any allowable topic under the Open
Public Meetings Act.

X. Adjournment - Chair Jacobsen
Time and order are approximate and subject to change.

Page 3 of 75



I:/BOT/Boardmax Template BOT Minutes 

Clark College 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

Wednesday, December 18, 2019 
GHL 213 

 
 
 
In Attendance 
Jane Jacobsen, Chair 
Rekah Strong, Vice Chair  
Jeanne Bennett, Trustee  
Paul Speer, Trustee 
 
Absent 
Jada Rupley, Trustee 
 
Administrators 
Dr. Sandra Fowler-Hill, Interim President  
Bill Belden, Vice President of Student Services 
Dr. Sachi Horback, Vice President of Instruction 
Genevieve Howard, Interim Associate Vice President of Instruction 
Kelly Love, Chief Communications Officer 
Kevin Witte, Vice President of Economic & Community Development  
Rashida Willard, Vice President of Diversity, Equity & Inclusion/Chief Diversity and Equity Officer  
Bob Williamson, Vice President of Administrative Services 
Shanda Haluapo, Associate Vice President of Planning & Effectiveness  
Stefani Coverson, Vice President of Human Resources & Compliance 
Valerie Moreno, Chief Information Officer 
 
Others 
Kimberly Witherspoon, Assistant Attorney General 
Lisa Gibert, CEO, Clark College Foundation 
Suzanne Southerland, AHE President  
Dee Harris, WPEA Representative  
 

I. Call to Order/Agenda Review 
Chair Jacobsen called the meeting to order at 5:05pm.  Chair Jacobsen read a statement.   
 
Good afternoon. The Board of Trustees welcomes public comment on all issues.  A reminder that we 
have a two minute time limit to accommodate everyone who wishes to speak.  We value all voices 
and perspectives. We ask everyone to be respectful in their comments.  If you wish to speak, please 
sign up and we will call your name.  Thank you. 

 
II. Introductions 

No introductions at this time.   
 

III. Action Items and/or Consent Agenda  

Page 4 of 75



I:/BOT/Boardmax Template BOT Minutes 

A. #1 - November 13, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 

B. #2 - December 2, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes 

C. #3 - December 9, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
 
MOTION: Trustee Bennett made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda Items III A-C.  Trustee 

Speer seconded the motion and it unanimously passed.  
 

IV. Audience Statements 
The following individuals shared public comments in support of the faculty during Audience 
Statements: 

 Suzanne Southerland  

 Malcom McCoy  

 Ron Lajoy  

 Sarah DeYoreo  

 Karina Bjork  

 Cassia Gammill 

 Sydney Braunnara  

 Dr. Gerry Dunn  

 Diane Coafrey 

 Alexis Nelson  

 Greg Finley 

 Raul Moreno 

 Siri Wickramaratne  

 Christine Gregor 

 April Mixon 

 Nadine Fortealeh 

 Adam Aguilera 

 Jen Ward  

 A Spicer  

 Mike Arnold 
 

V. Executive Session 
The Board went into Executive Session at 6:05pm under RCW 12.300110(1) (g) to evaluate the 
qualifications of an applicant for public employment.  It was announced that the Executive Session 
will last until 6:30pm.  The meeting was extended to 6:45pm.  The Executive Session ended at 
6:45pm, the Board went back into open meeting. 
 

VI. Presidential Search: 
Trustee Speer shared that there were 65 Presidential applicants.  Gold Hill Associates narrowed the 
search to 21 applicants.  The Presidential Search Advisory Committee reviewed the 21 applicants and 
after an in depth review, ten semi-finalists were selected.  The Presidential Search Advisory 
Committee conducted interviews with the ten semi-finalists through video conferences and four 
finalists were selected.  The four finalists are: Dr. Karin Edwards, president of the Cascade Campus of 
Portland Community College; Dr. Joaquín G. Martínez, district vice provost of institutional 
effectiveness at Miami Dade College; Dr. Lamata D. Mitchell, vice president of instruction and 
academic operations at Pima Community College; and Dr. Sara Thompson Tweedy, vice president of 

Page 5 of 75



I:/BOT/Boardmax Template BOT Minutes 

student access, involvement, and success at SUNY Westchester Community College.  The finalists will 
be on campus the week of January 13 and January 20.  After the college interviews and forums have 
taken place, a small team will visit the finalists’ campus for a tour and reference checks.  A decision 
and announcement of the next President will be made by February.   

 
MOTION: Chair Strong made a motion to approve the Presidential semi-finalists.  Trustee Bennett 

seconded the motion and it unanimously passed.  
 

VII. Constituent Reports 
A. AHE 

President Southerland stated concern about the message a strike sends to the Presidential 
finalists.  President Southerland requested Clark to act upon stated values with living wages, 
social equity and an investment in attracting and retaining faculty.   

 
B. WPEA 

Dee Harris congratulated Aaron McPherson in the amount of steps taken during the Walktober 
Challenge.  Ms. Harris also expressed appreciation to Janis Taylor, Budget Committee 
Enrollment, Advising and Entry services and fielding questions regarding ctcLink IT/Business 
services.  Ms. Harris announced that a Labor Management communication meeting is scheduled 
in January to discuss job diversity and bargaining; regular meetings are expected to take place 
throughout the academic year.   

 
C. ASCC  

President Kaame presented the ASCC November monthly report.  President Kaame highlighted 
the Legislative Breakfast and the ASCC Penguin Pantry.  The three priorities of the student 
government were evaluated with a reduction in the cost of books, optimization of website and 
sustaining the Penguin Pantry with short term and long term goals.  The ASCC has partnered with 
local business within Clark County and worked with the Foundation to identify those businesses 
and leaders in order to sustain and improve the Penguin Pantry program.   

 
D. Foundation 

CEO Gibert stated that the Holidays are an opportunity to build connections with donors and 
advocating for Clark.  CEO Gibert shared that the Penguin Pantry has secured a 10k donation 
match in order to “challenge” the campus to match through participation. CEO Gibert announced 
that 10 acers at Boschma Farms has been transferred to the College.   

 
VIII. Reports from Board Members 

A. Trustee Bennett 
Trustee Bennett shared that she attended the Legislative Breakfast, Guided Pathways meeting 

with Dr. Chris Hill, AACC Coach, discussed the onboarding process for the new president and a 

Foundation Board meeting. Trustee Bennett expressed appreciation to Phi Beta Kappa for their 

Thanksgiving basket fundraising goals. 

 
B. Chair Jacobsen  

Chair Jacobsen shared that she attended the Legislative Breakfast and the Presidential Search 
Advisory Committee.   
  

Page 6 of 75



I:/BOT/Boardmax Template BOT Minutes 

C. Trustee Speer 
Trustee Speer shared that he attended the Student of Color Lunch, Legislative Breakfast, STEM 
project work visit, Guided Pathways meeting with Dr. Chris Hill, AACC Coach, Community Equity 
Advisory Council meeting and a LEAD meeting. 
 

D. Trustee Strong 
Trustee Strong shared that she attended the Legislative Breakfast. 

 
IX. President's Report 

A. Student Affairs Presentation 
No Student Affairs Presentation. 
 

B. Faculty Presentation  
No Faculty Presentation.  
 

C. Scorecards  
Interim President Dr. Fowler-Hill reported progress made on each of the 10 Board Priorities 
would be presented at a Board of Trustees Work Sessions throughout the year.  Progress to date 
is included in the Board packet.  Dr. Fowler-Hill shared that activities are reflected in the 
December highlights with indicators that progress is being made for each priority. 
 
No budget report provided this month.  A budget report will be provided at the January meeting. 

 
X. Next Meeting 

The next regular meeting of the Board of Trustees is currently scheduled for Wednesday, January 22, 
2020 in the Ellis Dunn Community Room, GHL 213 at 5pm, however, it may change to a later date.  

 
XI. Executive Session 

The Board went into a closed meeting at 8:00 pm to plan or adopt the strategy or position to be 

taken by the Board during the course of collective bargaining or mediation proceedings or to review 

the proposals made in the negotiations or proceedings while in progress. The meeting was extended 

to 8:15pm, and again to 8:45pm, and again to 9:00pm. The closed meeting ended at 9:00pm and the 

Board went back into open meeting.  No action taken and the meeting was adjourned.  

XII. Adjournment 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:00pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
___________________________ Stephanie Weldy 
Jane Jacobsen, Chair Recorder 

 Date:  December 18, 2019 
 

Page 7 of 75



I:/BOT/Boardmax Template BOT Minutes 

 
 

Page 8 of 75



Clark College 

Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees  

Monday, January 13, 2020 

President’s Conference Room  
 

In Attendance 

Jane Jacobsen, Chair 

Rekah Strong, Vice Chair  

Jeanne Bennett, Trustee (via phone) 

Jada Rupley, Trustee   

Paul Speer, Trustee 

 

Others 

Kimberly Witherspoon, Assistant Attorney General  

 

I. Call to Order/Agenda Review 

Chair Jacobsen called the meeting to order at 7:20am. 

 

II. Special Session 

The Board convened a special session at 7:20am to discuss with legal counsel representing 

the College litigation or potential litigation to which the College is or is likely to become a 

party and under RCW 42.30.140(4)(b) to plan or adopt the strategy or position taken by the 

College during the course of collective bargaining or mediation proceedings or review 

proposals made in the negotiations or proceedings.  No action taken and special session 

adjourned at 8:00am.   

 

The Board convened a second special session at 8:00am under RCW 42.30.110(g) to 

evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment. 

 

III.   Adjournment 

There being no further business, Chair Jacobsen adjourned the special session at 9:30am. 

 

 

     

Jane Jacobsen, Chair 

Stephanie Weldy 

Recorder 

January 13, 2020 
 

Page 9 of 75



Clark College 

Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees  

Thursday, January 16, 2020 

President’s Conference Room  
 

In Attendance 

Jane Jacobsen, Chair 

Rekah Strong, Vice Chair  

Jeanne Bennett, Trustee (via phone) 

Jada Rupley, Trustee   

Paul Speer, Trustee 

 

Others 

Jennifer Mankowski Dixon, Assistant Attorney General  

 

I. Call to Order/Agenda Review 

Chair Jacobsen called the meeting to order at 8:00am. 

 

II. Special Session 

The Board convened a special session at 8:00am under RCW 42.30.110(g) to evaluate the 

qualifications of an applicant for public employment.  No action taken.   

 

III.   Adjournment 

There being no further business, Chair Jacobsen adjourned the special session at 9:30am. 

 

 

     

Jane Jacobsen, Chair 

Stephanie Weldy 

Recorder 

January 16, 2020 
 

Page 10 of 75



Clark College 

Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees  

Tuesday, January 21, 2020 

President’s Conference Room  
 

In Attendance 

Jane Jacobsen, Chair 

Rekah Strong, Vice Chair  

Jeanne Bennett, Trustee (via phone) 

Jada Rupley, Trustee   

Paul Speer, Trustee 

 

Others 

Kimberly Witherspoon, Assistant Attorney General  

 

I. Call to Order/Agenda Review 

Chair Jacobsen called the meeting to order at 8:00am. 

 

II. Special Session 

The Board convened a special session at 8:00am under RCW 42.30.110(g) to evaluate the 

qualifications of an applicant for public employment.  No action taken.   

 

III.   Adjournment 

There being no further business, Chair Jacobsen adjourned the special session at 9:30am. 

 

 

     

Jane Jacobsen, Chair 

Stephanie Weldy 

Recorder 

January 21, 2020 
 

Page 11 of 75



 

 

CLARK COLLEGE  

BACCALAUREATE OF 

APPLIED SCIENCE – 

TEACHING PRESCHOOL-3RD GRADE 
Prepared by Sarah Theberge, M.A. 

on behalf of the ECE faculty 

Winter 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/2 

CONTENTS 

Introduction………………………………………………………………………………… 3 

Criteria 1: Relationship to Institutional Role, Mission and Program Priorities……. 6 

Criteria 2: Support of Statewide Strategic Plans…………………………………….. 8 

Criteria 3: Employer/Community demand for graduates with baccalaureate 

level of education proposed in the program………………………………………...10 

Criteria 4: Applied baccalaureate program builds from existing professional 

and technical degree program offered by the institution…………………………12 

Criteria 5: Student demand for degree within the region………………………….14 

Criteria 6: Efforts to Maximize State Resources to serve place-bound 

students……………………………………………………………………………………….15 

Summary……………………………………………………………………………………...17 

Appendices: 

Letters of Support 

Student Survey results 

Employer Survey results 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/3 

Introduction 

We have a teaching crisis in the State of Washington and here in southwest 

Washington at Clark College, we are ready to serve!  The PESB (Professional 

Educators Standards Board) in an email of December 9th, 2019 indicated in its 

most recent data that our service district is experiencing a shortage in 

elementary education, early learning education and special education.   

Clark College, established in 1933 in Vancouver, Washington in service district 14 

serves Clark, Skamania, and western Klickitat counties; the total population in 

the service district is 748,031.  The College had a fall 2018 enrollment headcount 

of 11,717 students.  Clark College has three campuses, with the main campus 

situated on 78 acres and supporting 683,900 sq. ft. of building space.  The main 

campus is nestled next to the Columbia River, the largest river in the Pacific 

Northwest.  It is worth noting the proximity to the Portland, Oregon metropolitan 

area of which this proposed degree also can serve.  Clark College is less than 10 

miles to Portland, Oregon.  Opened in 2009, Columbia Tech Center is a one 

building campus located 10 miles east of main campus with a capacity of 

69,984 sq. ft.  The Clark College center as WSU-V, which opened in 2006, is also a 

one-building campus co-located on the WSU campus on Vancouver’s north 

side with a building capacity of 63,334 sq. ft.   

Clark College awards five Associates degrees: the Associate in Arts degree, the 

Associate in Science degree, the Associate in Fine Arts degree, the Associate in 

Applied Science degree, and the Associate in Applied Technology degree.  The 

college also currently offers three Applied Baccalaureate degrees: Dental 

Hygiene, implemented in 2015, Applied Management, which began in 2017, 

and Human Services that opened in 2018.    

Clark College (CC) is proposing to develop a Bachelor of Applied Science in 

Teaching (BASIT) that will include Teacher Certification Kindergarten through 

Third Grade.  We will build a degree that offers an educational pathway for 

Early Learning Education students, para-educators, preschool teachers, and 

childcare providers.  As an educational pathway, this degree will build upon the 

AAS degree, and offer a wider net of career and wage opportunity for those in 

early learning.   

The Academic Plan created for use at Clark College is a five-year plan that 

guides the college through the year 2020.  In the Academic Plan, it states,  

“Within Clark College’s service district (Clark, Skamania and Western Klickitat 

Counties), only one-third of adults 25 years or older have an associate’s degree 

or higher. That figure compares to just 28% of workers with postsecondary 

Page 14 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/4 

education nationally in 1973. At the same time, it is projected that 65% of the 

jobs in the workforce will require some type of post-secondary higher education 

by 2020 (American Association of Community Colleges, 2014). 

The Professional Education Standards Board (PESB) of the State of Washington 

reports a critical teacher shortage and the report card offers data that supports 

the need for affordable education opportunities in our state.  In the opening 

statement of this report it says: (The Data and the Education Story: Educator 

Shortage in the State of Washington, www.PESB.wa.gov) 

Educator shortage is a critical issue; it impacts almost every aspect of the education 

system in Washington. Spanning specific content areas, geographic regions, and 

disproportionate racial, ethnic, and linguistic demographics between educators and 

their students, the educator shortage is a complex issue that cannot be summed up or 

explained by a simple set of data points or research excerpts. By examining indicators 

and identifying approaches, this report explores the complexities of the shortage, dives 

into the descriptive data, and discusses current strategies. 

Additionally, community colleges have developed and are now offering bachelor’s 

degrees, increasing access in areas of great teacher shortages. Community colleges 

have prioritized first generation college students, paraeducators, and early learning 

employees becoming teachers. Community college teacher education programs can 

offer support services that effectively meet the needs of first-generation applicants 

through pathways for professional and technical associate degrees. Programs focus on 

high need endorsement areas, including developing bilingual, special education, and 

early learning endorsed teachers. These programs work closely with districts to develop 

educators, addressing regional educator shortage through a teacher education 

bachelor’s degree in the local community.  

Supporting our students means investing in our educators. This can happen through: 

• Growing our own educator pathways 

• Eliminating testing barriers 

• Lifting up paraeducators 

• Creating opportunities for professional growth across the career continuum and 

teacher leadership 

• Empowering diverse educators 

• Incentivizing partnerships between districts and preparation programs 

The Early Childhood Education department desires to promote higher education 

in our service area by providing the BAS-Teaching degree.  We note the need 

for an education degree that reflects the true definition of Early Learning by 

providing a pathway that educates the workforce in preschool through third 

grade.  

Page 15 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/5 

The purpose of this proposed degree is to provide a pathway of education and 

training needs of a professional workforce who provide learning and caring 

environments for young children ages three through eight.  This workforce is in 

diverse settings, including childcare centers, preschools, elementary schools, in-

home settings, corporate childcare centers, and coaching and mentoring.  

A BASIT offered at Clark College will accomplish the following objectives: 

 Provide an accessible pathway to a four-year degree with teacher 

certification to students who are often place-bound and employed in 

both childcare industries and in the K-12 system. 

 Provide a degree that allows those in the workforce access to higher 

wage earning positions a four-year degree allows. 

 Provide an educational pathway to a four-year degree with teacher 

certification to those holding an AAS degree in Early Childhood 

Education. 

 Provide our service district with qualified teaching candidates that reflect 

our demographics and can assist with our regional teacher and substitute 

teacher shortages.  

We will design a BASIT degree providing an educational pathway for place-

bound working adults and the needs within our service area.  Currently, our only 

regional program offered is located at Washington State University – Vancouver, 

unless the student is willing to pay out of state tuition in Oregon.  Many of these 

place-bound working adults are employed by school districts, Head 

Start/ECAEP, early learning centers and are hungry for an affordable route to a 

baccalaureate degree.  In fact, in our survey sent to students and alumni, out of 

122 responses, 60.66% indicated an “extreme” interest in the BASIT degree  and 

24.59% indicated interest.  The total number of surveys sent out was 380 and we 

had a 32% response rate.  

In this Statement of Need, we will discuss how this BASIT degree from Clark 

College: 

 Supports statewide strategic plans 

 Meets the demands of employers and community in the service area 

 Builds on existing professional-technical programs offered by the college 

 Meets student demands in the service area 

 Maximizes state resources to serve place-bound students 

 

Page 16 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/6 

Criteria 1: Relationship to Institutional Role, Mission, and Program 

Priorities. 
Describe how the proposed program reflects and supports the role and mission of the institution 

and reflects program priorities.  

The Mission and Value of Clark College is to ensure the following: 

Clark College, in service to the community, guides individuals to achieve their educational and 

professional goals 

Our college vision includes values of inspiration, transformation of lives and 

strengthening our growing diverse community.  This is no small task, and faculty 

and staff here at Clark College are up to this challenge.  In the Early Childhood 

Department, we are creating this degree so that those in the early learning 

industry have an opportunity for an affordable educational pathway and one 

that also allows the professional to be prepared for higher wage positions.  This 

pursuit embraces the spirit of inspiration, transformation and community 

strength.   

The implementation of a BASIT degree aligns with the 2019-2021 Strategic Plan of 

Clark College.  In particular, one of the Core Themes of the Strategic Plan is:  

Economic Vitality 

Facilitate student learning by providing programs, services, and conditions that 

improve the economic well-being of the students, college, and community.  

 Ensure graduates are employed in livable wage jobs either directly after 

professional/technical program or after successful transfer to four-year 

institution.  

 Reduce the cost of education. 

 Align program offerings with regional workforce needs to include 

technical and work-readiness skills.  

This degree will offer working adults in the field of early learning, who traditionally 

are paid lower wages, opportunities to meet the requirements of higher paying 

wages in the industry such as, coaching and mentoring, Head Start/ECAEP 

teachings, Center Directors, Administrative roles, K-3rd grade teaching and 

Paraeducators.   

Our advisors have reported over the years that students frequently request a 

pathway into a four-year degree program that is accessible both 

geographically and financially.  It is also important to note the relationship 

based advising and teaching in the ECE program here at Clark.  Over the years, 

Page 17 of 75

http://www.clark.edu/about/governance/strategic_plan/index.php


BAS in Teaching—Clark College/7 

our students requested time and time again, to be able to stay on this campus 

and continue their educational journey.  The ECE program is preparing to honor 

that need by providing this degree.  

The cost of four-year tuition at universities in the region is significantly higher than 

community college tuition.  This reduces the cost of education and access to 

statewide scholarship funding targeted for the Bachelor degree-seeking student 

is significant.  By accessing these Child Care Aware scholarship dollars at the 

cost of the community college tuition, this leaves more resources for allocation.  

It is because of these mentioned dynamics along with the data, this degree 

fulfills the core theme of Economic Vitality from our Mission Statement.  

Another theme of the Strategic Plan is: 

Social Equity 

Facilitate student learning by providing the conditions that improve educational 

outcomes and eliminate systemic disparities among all groups.  

 Eliminate racial disparities in educational outcomes. 

 Improve intercultural and multicultural competencies among students 

and employees (including educational opportunities and institutionalizing 

hiring and retention practices that challenge systems of power, privilege 

and inequity).  

Social Equity is one of the ECE program’s top priorities.  Our faculty have been 

heavily involved in embedding anti-bias and equity understanding into our 

curriculum.  In addition, faculty in our program are involved in local and state-

wide initiatives around equity.  In order for us to respond to the elimination of 

systemic disparities among all groups, it is important for us to understand whom 

we are currently serving.  In the Early Childhood Education department, here 

are some numbers that reflect our 2018-2019 academic year. 

Table 1: Department Demographics 

 ECE All other 

Student of color 30.66% 31.3% 

White non-Latinx 69.4% 68.9% 

First Generation Student 80.8% 73.3% 

Low Income Student 75.8% 63% 

Student with Disability 15.9% 7.9% 

Age 25 or older 50.5% 45.3% 

LGBTQIA 18.9% 14.5% 

Female 94.5% 57.5% 

Page 18 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/8 

As you can see, these numbers reflect areas of diversity a well-designed BASIT 

degree can have impact on in terms of eliminating systemic disparities.  This can 

be accomplished by increasing wage opportunities, and with carefully 

constructed curriculum that embeds outcomes of cultural competency, 

awareness of systemic oppression and learning activities that are accessible to 

our diverse student population.  It is also important to recognize the need for 

educational roles of teaching and leadership to reflect the demographics of 

those being served.  Our ECE program is a place where systemically non-

dominant populations are studying and entering the professional workplace.  

Having people of systemically non-dominant populations present as educators 

and leaders provides models of support for children to whom they represent.  

Students and children of color can feel alienated when they are not 

represented by those whom represent them.  Because of our demographics, we 

can work to shift opportunity profoundly and close the achievement gap.  

 

Criteria 2: Support of Statewide Strategic Plans. 
Describe how the program will support SBCTC Mission goals outlined in the Mission Study and 

WSAC policies and goals for higher education as articulated in the Strategic Master Plan for 

Higher Education 

The SBCTC commissioned a diverse task force to explore a variety of implications 

on the state of higher education in community colleges.  This 2010 report 

included information that allows us to understand the future needs of 

community colleges based on economic, financial, cultural and demographic 

trends as well as identifying emerging and effectives means of delivering 

education.  This document begins with a strong statement, “Our state’s most 

urgent need is educating more people to higher levels of skills and knowledge.”  

In the 20-year action plan, one of the strategies included “contribute more to 

the production of baccalaureate degrees” by an increase of 25% and grow by 

1400 degrees.   

In addition, the SBCTC report indicates a goal of increasing educational 

pathways for professional and technical associate graduates who have been 

limited in their ability to apply credits toward a bachelor degree.  Often times, 

the typical student with an AAS degree has to complete at least an additional 

year to transfer into a four-year university.  This dilemma presents a substantial 

barrier to the workforce student population that is comprised of a large portion 

of people of color, older working adults and people who are place bound.  In 

addition, we see a very high population of women in the ECE workforce who 

often have family responsibilities.   

Page 19 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/9 

According to the 2019-2021 WSAC Strategic Plan: (Washington Student Achievement 

Council) 

Increasing educational attainment is critical to Washington’s future. An educated 
populace reduces the strain on social services while increasing civic engagement and 
economic prosperity. And the demand for an educated workforce is high, as more than 
three-quarters of job openings require education beyond high school, with two-thirds 
requiring an associate degree or higher. Our state must develop its own talent pipeline 
to fill these critical openings. 
 
In addition, some highlights from the WSAC roadmap include: 
 

Washington’s Roadmap establishes two goals for 2023: 
 

• All adults in Washington, ages 25–44, will have a high school 
diploma or equivalent. 
• At least 70 percent of Washington adults, ages 25–44, will 

have a postsecondary credential. 
Currently, 89 percent of adults, ages 25–44, in Washington have 
a high school diploma or equivalent. Less than 50 percent of 
adults, ages 25–44, have a postsecondary credential. 

 

The BASIT degree will help to address the needs of educational pathways in our 

service area by closing the opportunity gap for underrepresented populations 

of people of whom are our deserving students.  The opportunity to re-engage 

adult learners who are longing for an affordable educational pathway will result 

in reaching these longed for goals.   

Systemic change needs to occur in order to obtain the robust 

recommendations of the WSAC strategic plan.  Some of the changes needed 

involve an “amply funded” postsecondary system and “regional leaders” that 

are committed to developing educational support and increase the attainment 

of educational goals at all levels.  Our faculty is committed to taking the lead on 

creating a degree that reflects the needs of our community, constructing 

innovative curriculum and assessment and do so with an affordable rate for 

students in Southwest Washington.  This will contribute to the goal of increasing 

both access and completion of the four-year degree and the creation of a 

more educated workforce to meet the state’s economic need.   

 

Criteria 3: Employer and Community Demand 
Employer demand must exceed regional supply of graduates with relevant degrees. 

Demand must be based on data sources including but not limited to local employer survey, 

traditional labor market data, industry data, trade associated date, and other transactional data.  

Page 20 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/10 

Please provide evidence of the gap between the numbers of program graduates verses he 

number of job opening locally and regionally.   

Clark College, located on the southern border between Washington and 

Oregon, primarily serves Clark, Skamania and Klickitat Counties.  The region also 

includes Educational Service District 112, which serves over 100,000 students in 30 

public school districts, numerous private schools and two state schools.  The 

three service district county combined populations is 508,291 (2017).  Clark 

College sits in the heart of Vancouver, the largest city in the service district with 

a population of 183,012 (2018).  There has been substantial growth in 

Vancouver, WA., with a 1.46% annual growth rate and is well on its way to hitting 

200,000.  With this combined service district, and the only community college in 

the southwest Washington gorge area, Clark College is well positioned to make 

a meaningful and significant contribution toward closing the employment gap 

of teachers in our region.  

In Vancouver, Washington according to the 2017 US Census ACS Table, 17.9% of 

the population had obtained a Bachelor’s degree, lower than the state 

average that hovers around 35%.  Our service district needs more options for the 

working professional in their educational pathway that can leverage their 

earning potential.   

Labor market and Statewide Employer Data: 

You will see from the table below, the labor market data provide a compelling 

rationale for creating this degree: 

Table 2: Regional labor market demand (Clark, 

Klickatat, Skamania, Washington, Multnomah, 

and Clackamas Counties)    

  

Preschool 

Teachers, Except 

Special Education 

Kindergarten 

Teachers, Except 

Special Education 

Elementary School 

Teachers, Except 

Special Education 

SOC 25-2011 25-2012 25-2021 

2019 Jobs 4,316 1,034 8,076 

2029 Jobs 4,963 1,108 8,641 

2019 - 2029 % Change 15% 7% 7% 

Annual Projected Openings 513 110 642 

Median Hourly Earnings $15.13 $35.65 $32.94 

 

Page 21 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/11 

According to EMSI: Economic Modeling Specialist International (2019), the 

current number of kindergarten and elementary education teachers employed 

in our geographic region stands at 9,110.  It is projected the growth rate will be 

7% over the next 10 years.  More specifically, there are 752 annual openings 

projected for kindergarten and elementary education teachers in our region.  In 

2018, there were 239 Bachelor’s degree or higher completions in 

kindergarten/elementary education programs leaving an estimated annual 

supply gap of 513. 

While the AAS degree currently helps address the labor market demand for 

preschool teachers, we anticipate the BASIT degree will offer more opportunity 

for those career bound student workers who could then seek higher paid roles in 

Head Start, NAEYC accredited facilities, Administration and Coaching and 

Mentoring positions.  Also, higher education degrees allows for access to higher 

scores in the QRIS (Quality Rating and Improvement System)  rating scale for 

licensed child care facilities. 

Our early learning centers that offer ECEAP and Head Start slots typically have 

requirements for teachers to have or pursue a Bachelor’s degree.  This puts a 

strain on teachers as the number of childcare slots for ECEAP and Head Start 

rise.  Consider this chart of ECEAP expansion from the Washington State 

Department of Children, Youth and Families (DCYF): 

 

As you can see, during the 2018-19 school year, 13,491 children were served.  

More importantly, 18,614 eligible children were not served and of those, 4,670 

would likely have participated if there was room.  The percentage of children 

who are served stands at 55%, yet 83% would likely participate.  By the year 

Page 22 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/12 

2022-23, we need 5,926 more slots, and that creates a need for more teachers, 

particularly those in early learning with a Bachelor’s degree.   

In our survey with employers, we had a positive response for having employees 

they would refer for a BAS degree – 88.64% of respondents indicated yes and 

75% indicated a BAS degree would assist their organization in finding qualified 

applicants.  Some of the anecdotal comments and feedback are as follows: 

 “Our community needs a program to support professionalizing the field 

and supporting providers in getting an education focused on working with 

early learning that goes beyond an associate’s degree!” 

 “I think this is a wonderful idea!  Classes would need to be online or in the 

evenings as most centers are open from 6am-6pm and teachers work full 

time.” 

 “I am very excited about this possibility for my program.” 

 “I am so excited about this program and am looking forward to being a 

part of it.” 

Both the employer and student/alumni surveys are included in the appendix. 

 

Criteria 4: Applied baccalaureate program builds from existing 

professional and technical degree program offered by the institution 
Describe he existing professional and technical degree program that will be used as the 

foundation for applied baccalaureate program.  Include how long the program has been in 

existence and the enrollment history of the program over the past five years.  

The Early Childhood Education program began in 1968 and was originally part 

of the Home Economics Department.  In the mid-1970’s, ECE became a 

separate department which brought about changes and specificity in ECE 

curriculum.  The program expanded and the Early Childhood Education 

Laboratory School became the program’s teaching laboratory.  The 

department currently offers an AAS degree, AAS-T degree as well as the 

stackable certificates agreed upon with common curricula by our consortium.   

The Early Childhood Education Department at Clark College has a long-

standing positive reputation in our service area.  We have a robust advisory 

committee that represents various agencies throughout our area.  We have 

collaborated with K-12 school districts in articulation agreements and are 

members of the ECTPC (Early Childhood Teacher Prep Council)coalition.  This 

coalition has created “Stackable Certificates” that are designed to offer a 

pathway toward achievement of the AAS degree.  Our AAS degree includes 71 

ECE credits and 25 general education credits, for a total of 96.  Clark also offers 

the State Stackable Certificates that uses common courses created by our 

Page 23 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/13 

coalition of community colleges.  These stackable certificates move directly into 

the AAS degree and begin with the 12 credit Initial Certificate.  It is this Initial 

Certificate that we have articulated with K-12 school districts in our area.   

Our main college campus hosts our ECE program and we currently have three 

tenured faculty positions and one adjunct faculty.  Most recently, our dear 

friend and colleague, and tenured ECE faculty member passed away.  The 

administration at Clark College recently notified the college campus this 

position will be filled and the job posting will open in January 2020.  It is our intent 

to consider the needs of a BAS degree, issues of power, privilege and inequity 

and curriculum development when creating the job description.   

In addition, our campus hosts the Child and Family Studies Program where our 

students engage in their hands-on lab experiences.  Our lab is quite well known 

in the area and our program provides a wide margin of the work force needs.  

Our lab instructors observe and assess our AAS students in collaboration with a 

dedicated faculty position that coordinates the lab.  Our lab school is 

internationally known and has been featured in a Reggio Emilia tour of facilities 

and our outdoor space is seen in textbooks.   

Information about enrollment data can be seen in this table: 

Table 3: Enrollment and Completion Data 

  

Enrollment In ECE 

Program Group 

Enrollment in ECE 

(AAS, AAS-T Coded 

Only) 

Completions 

(AAS,AAS-T) 

2014-2015 243 238 30 

2015-2016 231 222 21 

2016-2017 223 204 20 

2017-2018 203 191 22 

2018-2019 252 219 19 

 

For more specificity, data in this table reflect the 2018-19 academic year 

according to completions of Associate degrees and certificates.  It is worth 

noting the lack of completions of AAS-T students.  The lack of opportunity for 

transfer in our area contributes to this statistic. 

 

 

Page 24 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/14 

Table 4: 2018-19 Completion data 

EARLY CHILDHOOD EDUCATION 
2018-2019 Academic Yea 

ASSOCIATES CERTIFICATES 

AAS-T ECE 0  

AAS - ECE 19  

State Initial Certificate  43 

State Short Certificate of 
Specialization - General 

 19 

State Short Certificate 
Specialization – Infants and 
Toddlers 

 8 

State Short Certificate 
Specialization – School Age Care 

 7 

State Short Certificate 
Specialization – Family Child Care 

 2 

State Short Certificate 
Specialization - Administration 

 3 

 

Lastly, the ECE program is beginning the process of adopting the common 

courses for the Paraeducator stackables created by the ECTPC consortium.  This 

will provide an additional lift to those people in the Paraeducator workforce 

who desire teaching certification. 

CRITERIA 5: STUDENT DEMAND FOR THE DEGREE IN THE REGION 
Evidence of student interest and demand from multiple sources, such as but not limited to: 

students graduating with technical associate degrees in the region, survey of students within the 

region, demand in excess of opportunity to enroll in related traditional bachelor’s programs, and 

changes in industry standards   

The student and alumni demand for an early learning Bachelor’s degree at 

Clark College is extremely strong and has been for quite some time.  Our two 

advisors report the challenges faced in our service area for a pathway for 

students in our ECE program.  If a student wants to attend our closest partner, 

they would transfer to WSU-V and most enter the Human Development 

program.  It has been only recently we have had an articulation agreement 

with WSU-V on that pathway.  Students who want to continue with their ECE 

studies are limited to Concordia University and Portland State University, both in 

Oregon.  Students can also apply for on-line programs, and the larger 

percentage of our students do not prefer an on-line modality.   

Clark College sent out a survey in early fall 2019 to graduates and was also 

distributed via Canvas for current ECE students.  We sent out 380 surveys and 122 

responded for a 32.1% response rate.  From this survey, we were able to hear 

from students and alumni indicating they were “extremely interested” with a 

percentage of 60.66%.  In addition, 24.14% percent showed an interest.  Only a 

Page 25 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/15 

total of 14.66% percent showed below that.  In addition, when asked the 

question, “What are your areas of interest within the ECE and Teaching 

program”, the largest percentage is in preschool and teaching certification.  It is 

worthy to note that comments also mentioned Special Education as a preferred 

interest.   

A few other questions of particular interest address reasons for and access to a 

Bachelor’s degree.  When asked if our surveyed participants would be more 

likely to pursue a Bachelor’s degree at a community college, 70.19% strongly 

agreed and 21.15% agreed.  When the question of pay posed, “A Bachelor’s 

degree would increase my pay,” 72.55% responded with strong agreement and 

14.71% responded with agree.   

Included are a few of the student comments from the survey. 

 “I’ve been hoping for this day to come!” 

 “This would mean the world to me.  It is exactly what I am wanting for my 

BA and the location would help me as well”. 

 “This is the best idea I’ve ever heard.  Clark College changed my life 

getting my ECE associates.  I would LOVE to come back for my 

Bachelors”. 
 

Table 5: FTE projections 

Program FTE projections 
Item 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026 

Annualized 

FTE 

0 24 36 48 60 72 

 

Criteria 6: Efforts to Maximize State Resources to serve place-bound 

students 
Describe how program will serve place-bound working adults 

Identify similar program offered by public o independent institution in the region. 

Describe options that have been explored for collaboration with other public baccalaureate 

institution, businesses, and/or community organizations considered in the development of the 

proposal and include a brief description of initial conversations. 

Describe collaboration with similar CTC BAS programs and related Centers of Excellence. 

Describe unique aspects of the proposed program that differentiate it from similar programs 

and/or describe why expansion would be desirable or necessary. 

Based on the student survey results, Clark College is prepared to develop a BAS 

degree that serves the diverse needs – such as place-bound students, working 

students, affordability and comfortable access.   

Page 26 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/16 

This degree, designed with primarily face-to-face options and will honor the 

survey requests for hybrid courses and evening offerings.  This will provide 

flexibility for our working populations so employers are not overwhelmed.  This is 

important for the responsibilities of working students who also have demands of 

family and other commitments.   

Outcomes that prepare students to meet competencies identified by 

professional institutions such as NAEYC, PESB and Educator Preparation 

organizations will be embedded into a robust curriculum.   

The limited options for our service area students to obtain a four-year degree is 

one of the primary drivers of our pursuit.  If a student wants to continue their ECE 

pathway, they find themselves often needing an additional year of general 

education requirements because the AAS does not have a pathway directly in 

to the university.  In addition, our students have limitations to other universities 

located in Oregon (since we are a border town), where out-of-state tuition 

becomes a barrier.  These challenges put additional stressors on students and 

limits their financial aid opportunities.   

As we look at the stretch of state resources, it becomes imperative to create 

pathways that are accessible for the workforce, for financial implications and for 

the amount of time needed for completion.   

We also want to emphasize the bridge that can be developed between Early 

Learning and the elementary systems through this BAS degree.  Intentional 

curriculum that addresses early learning in its professional identification as birth 

through age eight, this degree offers the opportunity to integrate research that 

supports this identity.  Our community benefits from maximizing resources and 

distributing those same resources to more students through affordable 

accessibility.  The residents of our community can access a degree that is 

reasonable and in a timely manner, and this benefits and aids the community 

economic goals and uses resources responsibly.   

Conversations with university partners that have ensued thus far, have been 

initiated by faculty from Clark with Portland State University and Washington 

State University-Vancouver.  Our initial conversation with the Co-Coordinator 

Master's of Early Childhood: Inclusive Ed, was extremely positive and we were 

offered resources and the door is wide open to explore a Master’s pathway with 

their program.  We also had an initial conversation with WSU-V with the 

Department Chair of Educational Leadership and Sport Management in the 

College of Education who also was generous with resources and information 

and indicated we are welcome to continue our outreach with them.   

Page 27 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/17 

Our ECE faculty will be at the table with our K-12 partners who are beginning 

discussions with the Vancouver Education Diversity and Inclusion Committee to 

talk with community leaders how we can partner to “grow our own” systemically 

non-dominant K-12 teachers.  This partnership is greatly important to our ECE 

faculty and a value in creating this degree.  We also have an upcoming 

meeting in January that brings together Human Resource representatives from 

our service district elementary schools, organized by our local ESD at our request 

using this degree as the catalyst for discussion.  We want to be sure the degree 

best reflects the hiring needs of our partner school districts.  

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 

It is with great pride faculty of Clark College present this opportunity for 

consideration.  Clark College has been the hub of education in southwest 

Washington not only as a gem at the heart of Vancouver, but more specifically, 

with our history of support in early learning.  From the Kaiser shipyards during 

WWII, family partnerships and parent education grew as women found their way 

to the workforce.  Over the years, we have set trends in lab school curriculum, 

outdoor classrooms, I-Best instruction, family partnerships and equity based 

learning and teaching.   

Given the trends and data that show the crisis in regards to teaching hiring and 

retention, and the number of children and families that go without education 

and resources, we are committed to address this head-on with our own unique 

brand of educational opportunity.  Our faculty work tirelessly to address the 

needs of our students and this is a critical moment in our local area for us to 

respond to the long asked for education path for our students.   

Our offering of this degree will serve to remove financial, geographical and 

perhaps most important, psychological barriers experienced by the unique 

professional-technical community college student.  By granting permission for 

Clark College to create this degree, you will have joined us in the pursuit of an 

equitable educational and accessible path for Early Learning and Education 

students in Southwest Washington.   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/18 

Appendix A.  Letters of support 

 

Page 29 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/19 

 

 

Page 30 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/20 

Appendix B. Student survey results 

1.  If a Bachelor of Applied Science (BAS) degree in Early Childhood Education 

and Teaching was offered at Clark College, how likely would you be to enroll? 

Extremely Interested 60.98% 75 

Interested 24.39% 30 

Unsure 7.32% 9 

Not Interested 2.44% 3 

Not Interested At All 4.88% 6 

 Answered 123 

 

2.  What are your areas of interest within the Early Childhood Education and 

Teaching program? [Select all that apply] 

Infant/toddler 49.09% 54 

Preschool 67.27% 74 

Teaching certification (P-3rd) 70.00% 77 

Other (please specify) 12.73% 14 

 Answered 110 

 Skipped 13 

 

Other (please specify): 

All ages in middle school 

Special education 

Special education, speech, OT. 

School age child care requirements for upcoming WAC change 

K-8 

Special education with children who have learning disabilities  

Administration 

coaching families 

Management 

Administration, Counseling, Social Behavior Studies  

Teaching elementary school  

Human Development  

Special education  

Special Education 

 

 

 

Page 31 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/21 

3. When would you most likely enroll? 

Fall 2020 45.45% 50 

Winter 2021 7.27% 8 

Fall 2021 11.82% 13 

Winter 2022 1.82% 2 

Unsure 33.64% 37 

 Answered 110 

 Skipped 13 

 

4.  If you were to enroll in the Early Childhood Education and Teaching BAS 

Degree at Clark College, what would your status as a student be for enrollment 

purposes? 

Would attend the BAS Degree full-time (3+ courses per quarter) 40.91% 45 

Would attend the BAS Degree part-time (1-2 courses per 

quarter) 

41.82% 46 

Not sure if I would attend BAS Degree full-time or part-time 17.27% 19 

 Answered 110 

 Skipped 13 

 

5. If you were to enroll in the Early Childhood Education and Teaching BAS 

Degree at Clark College, what format would you chose to have these classes 

held in? 

Daytime Classes, held on Campus 10.00% 11 

Evening Classes, held on Campus 11.82% 13 

All Classes taken Online 20.91% 23 

Hybrid, Classes held on Campus and taken 

Online 

47.27% 52 

No Preference to format 10.00% 11 

 Answered 110 

 Skipped 13 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/22 

6. Please identify the reasons you would pursue an Early Education and 

Teaching BAS Degree at Clark College: [Select all that apply] 

Allow me to meet increasing education requirements for my 

job. 

51.82% 57 

To be eligible for promotion and advanced positions. 52.73% 58 

Add to my current job skills. 57.27% 63 

Earn a bachelor’s degree. 72.73% 80 

Lower cost than attending a 4-year university. 70.00% 77 

I have a job/family here and would like to stay local to avoid 

additional travel expenses. 

41.82% 46 

The Early Childhood Education and Teaching Program 

content is focused on my career goals. 

69.09% 76 

The quality of education offered at Clark College. 55.45% 61 

Other (please specify) 3.64% 4 

 Answered 110 

 Skipped 13 

 

Other (please specify): 

I have attempted online twice and the format does not work for 

me. 

possible scholarship through Early Achievers 

The Awesome Professors! 

Familiarity of Program and Campus 

 

7. Are you currently employed in: 

Child care 42.57% 43 

Head Start 17.82% 18 

ECEAP 21.78% 22 

Private Pre-

school 

13.86% 14 

Public 

elementary 

5.94% 6 

Unemployed 22.77% 23 

 Answered 101 

 Skipped 22 

 

 

 

 

Page 33 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/23 

8.  Please rate your level of agreement or disagreement with each of the 

following statements: 

  Strongly 

Agree 

Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly 

Disagree 

Total 

I would be more likely to pursue 

a Bachelor’s degree if it were 

offered at a community 

college. 

70.91% 

78 

 

20.91% 

23 

8.18% 

9 

0.00% 

0 

0.00% 

0 

110 

I need a Bachelor’s degree in 

Clark County because I’m 

unable to relocate to complete 

the degree I desire. 

34.58% 

37 

18.69% 

20 

35.51% 

38 

6.54% 

7 

4.67% 

5 

107 

A bachelor’s degree would 

give me more job options or 

promotions. 

75.23% 

82 

20.18% 

22 

3.67% 

4 

0.92% 

1 

0.00% 

0 

109 

A Bachelor’s degree would 

increase my pay. 

 70.37% 

76 

15.74% 

17 

13.89% 

15 

0.00% 

0 

0.00% 

0 

108 

A Bachelor’s degree would 

add to my skills so I can do my 

job better. 

72.48% 

79 

18.35% 

20 

9.17% 

10 

0.00% 

0 

0.00% 

0 

109 

I need a Bachelor’s degree to 

keep my job. 

 13.76% 

15 

11.01% 

12 

33.03% 

36 

33.03% 

36 

9.17% 

10 

109 

 

9. Please provide any questions or comments you have regarding a new 

Bachelor of Applied Science (BAS) degree in Early Childhood Education and 

Teaching. 

Responses 

If this program or degree is offered, please let students and staff know as soon as possible, so 

they can sign up! 

When would the program possibly begin? For students working full time and raising a family 

would there be flexibility in the timeline and course offerings? Will there be any additional 

financial aid? 

Would I need to complete "transfer credits?" I have my AAS in ECED from Lower Columbia 

College.  

I've been waiting for this opportunity to start last Fall. I would be the first to enroll!!! I would like 

online and evening classes. 

I would love an option other than WSU- Vancouver.  The writing heavy program they offer is 

not conducive to going to school while working full time.  The heavy emphasis on formatting 

does not match my needed job skills so it is very hard to stay motivated. 

I chose Hybrid format for preferred class format, however, I would like to clarify that it would 

be nice if it could also include classes offered at night for individuals who have daytime 

commitment jobs and would otherwise only be able to attend online but also enjoy in-class 

learning methods.  I loved my experience at Clark College because of flexibility it provided 

with when I could take my classes and in what format worked best for my learning style and 

work schedule. Currently I am enrolled at WSUV, however, I find it hard to juggle the course 

load and as there is a primary push to attend full time. Would love to have a feasible part time 

option of completing a Bachelor's degree. 

Page 34 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/24 

Responses 

Please do this!!!!!  

I am unsure that I want to receive my degree in education, but I for sure know I want to work 

with children.is there any other options for myself to work with children, and have this apply, 

but not become a teacher? 

I just want to say that this would be amazing. Its my goal to get my bachelors in ECE. I have 

found that very little schools in our area offer this. The nearest is LLC in Longview. To attend 

would require a 2 hour commute round trip each day I attended class. Having this program at 

Clark College would not only be more affordable for me as a student but it would also let me 

stay in my own home city and still further my education.  

No questions 

This is the best idea I’ve ever heard. Clark college changed my life getting my ECE associates. 

I would LOVE to come back for my bachelors.  

I’ve been hoping for this day to come!!!  

This is awesome! If this program becomes an option I will be among the first to sign up! 

I wish this degree was being offered when I was at Clark College. I finished my AAS in ECE and 

AA at Clark and I loved it! I completed my BS in ECE at CU and now halfway through my 

master as well in ECE. Thanks to wonderful teachers like you Sarah who I started with!! I am 

excited for this new program for teachers and students!!!!! 

This would mean the world to me. It is exactly what I am wanting for my BA and the location 

would help me as well. 

Would this allow you to work at a school district as a kindergarten or first grade teacher in the 

state of WA?  

This is a beautiful idea to add to Clark college amazing ece program. Child and family studies 

is packed with learning, loving, understanding, and quality care. I feel this program would 

benefit children everywhere teachers students and have a ripple affect of positivity if allowed 

at Clark. All the good things. Love you Sarah and Michelle.  

I think it's great idea, and I would love to see it in the community.  

I am extremely excited to hear about this and look forward to new advancements in 

education at Clark College.  

Would the AA Math and English be enough to work towards a Bachelor's degree or would I 

have to take more Math and English to even qualify to begin the Bachelor's Degree?  I took 

Math 030 and English 101. 

If Clark College offered BAS I will enroll.  I want to continue my education to grow the my 

career. Please contact me as soon the degree is open at Clack college.  

I am interested in finding more information about this degree but at the moment I am 

homeschooling my own children and not looking for employment. But I may still be interested. 

Would love to start a bachelor's asap! Just filled out my FAFSA and cant decide on a college 

as I'm not happy with the options 

I am moving to Southern Oregon to pursue my bachelors, offering the program here would 

really heighten the odds of staying in Vancouver 

I guess by getting my Bachelor's degree at Clark College will give me the opportunity to serve 

better the children who will be under my care....  

Would this bachelor program offer boarder degrees such human development? 

I would absolutely love this! I also know so many other people who are not currently enrolled in 

Clark who would do this program as well 

When are you tempted, does the program begin, if it is approved? 

Page 35 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/25 

Responses 

Clark has been a wonderful school for me because of the affordability. I wouldn't be able to 

attend a 4 year college because of the tuition fee. 

Clark College is amazing and I would love to stay and continue to pursue my early childhood 

education past my associate's  

I believe this would benefit many students who can't really pay or have the option to go to a 

university due to other responsibilities. 

I think this is a wonderful idea !   

 

10. If you are not interested in acquiring a BAS degree in Early Childhood 

Education and Teaching at Clark College, can you tell us the reason for not 

pursuing it? [Select all that apply] 

Already hold a bachelor's degree. 33.33% 3 

Financial cost of completing a bachelor's degree. 11.11% 1 

The time requirements in completing a bachelor's degree. 22.22% 2 

Would prefer to earn a bachelor's degree in another field. 22.22% 2 

Already have plans to attend another college or university. 11.11% 1 

Satisfied with an Associate’s degree or certificate (no need to 

further my career path). 

0.00% 0 

Other (please specify) 33.33% 3 

 Answered 9 

 Skipped 114 

 

Other (please specify) 

need a teaching cert program... 

I no longer work. So, no need to further my 

education 

Already retired 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/26 

Appendix C.  Employer survey results 

1.  Your position: 

Responses 

Superintendent 

Assistant Superintendent 

HR Director, Workforce Development 

Assistant Superintendent 

Superintendent 

HR Coordinator 

Special Education Preschool Teacher 

Owner & Director 

owner 

Childcare Supervisor 

Speech pathologist 

Childcare Director - school age 

Owner of a childcare center and family home cc 

Director 

Director of Education 

Education Manager 

Owner/Director 

School Age Director 

Director of Camas Community Education 

Preschool Teacher Assistant  

Owner / Director  

 Early Learning Coordinator, Ridgefield School 

District 

In Home Childcare Owner 

Owner/Operator  

Center Director 

Owner  

Child Care Center Director 

Director 

Education and Operations Services Coordinator 

Education Manager 

Director 

School Age Assistant 

Center Director  

Program director  

Preschool teacher  

Director 

Family home childcare provider  

Page 37 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/27 

Responses 

Operations Director 

Center Director 

Director 

Owner director 

Center Director  

Director 

Director  

Child Care Center Director 

Early Learning Director 

HR and Talent Development Manager 

Director 

Director of Early Learning 

Owner 

HR Coordinator 

 

2.  Your organization: 

Responses 

Hockinson School District 

Longview School District 

Vancouver Public Schools 

Woodland Public Schools 

Skamania School District 

Evergreen Public Schools 

Evergreen School District 

Kiddie academy of Vancouver - Fishers Landing 

Sandi's Day Care 

Lifeline Connections 

South Bend School Dist WA 

SWCCC 

Candy’s Learning and Play Playce 

Children's Village BR & Children's Village SC 

The Goddard School 

EOCF 

LAKESHORE LEARNING CENTER 

SELF  

Camas School District 

Willapa Valley ECEAP 

Miss Jaime’s Early Learning Center  

Ridgefield School District 

Page 38 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/28 

Responses 

Many Minis (Previously known as Martha's Home 

Childcare) 

Gathering Tree Early Learning 

SELF and ESD112 

Artistic Adventures Childcare 

SWCCC-Sunset 

SWCCC 

ESD112 

EOCF 

Cardinal Preschool 

Fircrest SWCCC 

Swccc 

Southwest Washington Learning Center 

Self employed 

Wee Care Day Care & Preschool 

Family Home-Early Achievers 

SELF 

Child Care Center 

Wee Care Daycare 

Daybreak early learning center  

KinderCare Learning Centers  

Learning Avenues Child Care Centers 

Wee Care Day Care  

Support for Early Learning and Families/ ESD112 

South Bend School District 

Support for Early Learning and Families 

Country Friends Child Care 

Camas School District 

Kiddie Academy Salmon Creek 

Ridgefield School District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/29 

3. I have a favorable impression of Clark College’s ability to produce qualified 

graduates for employment in my organization.  

Strongly disagree 19.23% 10 

Disagree 0.00% 0 

Neither disagree or 

agree 

11.54% 6 

Agree 23.08% 12 

Strongly Agree 46.15% 24 

 Answered 52 

 Skipped 0 

 

4.  I employ people to work in: 

Head Start 14.00% 7 

ECEAP 28.00% 14 

Child Care 80.00% 40 

K-12 classroom para-

educator 

20.00% 10 

K-3 classrooms certificated 18.00% 9 

 Answered 50 

 Skipped 2 

 

5. How many early childhood education and teaching positions, if any, do you 

currently have open? 

Responses 

I do not believe we have any open currently. 

0 

0 

0 

0 

We have more than 4 positions at para educator. 

3 

none 

1 

At least two are currently open in the center 

0 

None at this time. 

5 

2 

5 

Page 40 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/30 

Responses 

2 

1 

none 

0 

2 

2 

5 

0 

4 

None 

0 

None 

20 

3 

0 

1 

4 

0 

2 

0 

32 

3 

4 

0 

3 

1 

1 

1 

1 

18 

none at moment but will need two teachers in January 

2020 

1 

3-5 

0 

 

 

 

 

Page 41 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/31 

6. How many early childhood education and teaching positions, if any, do you 

anticipate having open in the next 3 years? 

Responses 

I will defer to Julie Dobbins, our HR Director.  But I did want to add that the Hockinson School 

District is looking to build an early learning program starting as early as Fall 2020.  We already 

offer an after school program for elementary students.  This preschool option and possibly 1-2-

3 Grow program (depending on how our pilot goes this winter) would be a great compliment.  

There is a lot of parent interest in all day preschool. 

10-20 

1 

5-6 

0-1 

Teaching: We hire an average 180 teachers per year, hard to guess how many will be early 

childhood 

More than 10 

10 

none 

2 

At least 3 teaching 

1-2 

Depends, could be as many as 5. 

unknown 

2 to 5 

50 

Many will come and go  

1 to 2 

4 

2 

2-3 

6-8 

Not sure, but enough to run a 24 hour childcare center. 

1-3 

2 

1 

1 

A few 

100 

This is hard to say; we typically have several per year. 

2-3 

2 

4 

0 

Page 42 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/32 

Responses 

10 

0 

50+ 

2 

20 

3 

5 

5 

5 

14 

3 

At any given point we have between 10-20 vacancies. 

depends on turnover but probably 2-5 

2-3 

3-5 

100 

 

7.  When hiring for a new position, please state whether you require and/or 

prefer each of the following degrees: 

  Required Preferred Not Required / 

Not Preferred 

Total 

Associate's Degree 13.04% 6 50.00% 23 36.96% 17 46 

Associate's Degree in Early 

Childhood Education 

22.45% 11 67.35% 33 10.20% 5 49 

Bachelor's Degree 8.70% 4 56.52% 26 34.78% 16 46 

Bachelor's Degree, with P-3 

Certification 

8.89% 4 48.89% 22 42.22% 19 45 

Bachelor's Degree in Early 

Childhood Education 

6.38% 3 70.21% 33 23.40% 11 47 

Bachelor's Degree in Early 

Childhood Education, with P-3 

Certification 

6.67% 3 57.78% 26 35.56% 16 45 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/33 

8. A Bachelor’s of Applied Science (BAS) Degree in Early Childhood Education 

and Teaching would assist our organization in finding qualified applicants to fill 

the position(s). 

Strongly disagree 15.69% 8 

Disagree 3.92% 2 

Neither disagree or 

agree 

3.92% 2 

Agree 31.37% 16 

Strongly agree 45.10% 23 

 Answered 51 

 Skipped 1 

 

9. Please provide the job titles of the positions at your organization that 

graduates of the Clark College BAS in Early Childhood Education and Teaching 

program would be qualified to fill. 

Responses 

Teacher 

Para-educator 

Early Childhood Education Teacher 

K-2 classroom teacher 

Para educator 

Para educator 

Lead Teacher; Education Supervisor; Program Supervisor; Assistant Director; Director 

Therapeutic Childcare Teacher 

I am not in a management position that does hiring. I would assume that lead teachers 

and/or specialist positions would benefit greatly from this educational program. Specialist 

positions (early intervention, 0-3, and administrative supervisory roles) should require this 

training. 

Director roles  

Lead teacher in a preschool classroom, assistant director, and director. 

Early Head Start, ECEAP, Early ECEAP and gen ed teachers  

Assistant Teacher, Lead Teacher, Assistant Director, Curriculum Specialist, Director 

Education Manager 

CFSS (Director) 

Teacher-EHS, HS, ECEAP 

Any Lead Teacher Position, Assistant Director, Program Assistant 

Lead teacher and/or Director  

Pro-Tech Preschool Teacher 

Para classroom assistant 

Preschool Teacher 

Assistant Director, Program supervisor and lead teachers  

Page 44 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/34 

Responses 

Lead Preschool Teacher 

Assistant Preschool Teacher 

Lead Teacher Positions 

Supervisor Positions 

Fill in for Lead Teacher & Supervisor Positions  

Lead teacher 

Assistant teacher 

Center Directors 

Site Coordinators 

Lead Teachers 

Lead Assistants 

I'm not sure at this point 

Lead ECEAP Teachers, Assistants, Lead Childcare Teacher, Assistant Childcare Teacher 

Lead teacher, Director, Services Coordinator, Manager. 

Teacher Assistant 

ECE Teacher 

Teacher & Family Advocate 

Child & Family Services Supervisor 

PreK teacher, ages 4-5 

Center directors  

Our childcare provides a private kindergarten program and wanting to increase it to first 

grade.  

None  

Lead Teacher 

School Age Program 

Assistant Director  

Director 

Lead Preschool Teacher 

Assistant Preschool Teacher 

Lead Infant/Toddler Teacher 

Assistant Infant/Toddler Teacher 

Lead teacher for Childcare, ECEAP, and EHS 

Family Support Specialist 

Director 

Lead teaching position and administration positions 

Assistant director, lead teachers, co-lead teachers 

Lead teacher 

Lead Teacher, Assistant Director, Center Director, Education Consultant, Curriculum 

Developer.  

Head Start Lead Teacher, ECEAP Lead Teacher, Assistant Director, Director 

Early Childhood Education  

Child Care Center Director 

Program Supervisor 

Lead Teacher 

Page 45 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/35 

Responses 

Center Directors, EHS Lead and Assistant Teachers, ECEAP Lead and Assistant Teachers, Child 

Care Lead and Assistant Teachers 

Lead Teacher, Assistant Director, Director 

Preschool Special Education Teachers 

Preschool Pro-tech teachers 

High Needs para educators 

Academy Director 

Assistant Academy Director 

Preschool Teacher 

 

10.  The starting wage for a teacher with a Bachelor's Degree in my organization 

is: 

Less than $20,000 8.33% 4 

$20,000 to $29,999 22.92% 11 

$30,000 to $39,999 29.17% 14 

$40,000 to $49,999 29.17% 14 

$50,000 to $59,999 8.33% 4 

$60,000 or more 2.08% 1 

 Answered 48 

 Skipped 4 

 

11.  I have current employees that I would refer to the Bachelor of Applied 

Science (BAS) in Early Childhood Education and Teaching Program at Clark 

College? 

Yes 80.39% 41 

Maybe 17.65% 9 

No 1.96% 1 

 Answered 51 

 Skipped 1 

 

12.  Please provide any comments, questions or concerns that Clark College 

should consider when creating this Bachelor of Applied Science Degree in Early 

Childhood Education and Teaching to meet the needs of your organization. 

Responses 

I am sorry I left some of these questions blank. Julie Dobbins is the most qualified person to 

answer them.  But I do want to express support for this program.  We are currently unable to 

find qualified employees for our after-school and Comm Ed offerings.  I anticipate that this 

program would help connect us with candidates.   

Page 46 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/36 

Responses 

Regarding Q 8, a BA/BS and Washington Teaching Certificate is required for certificated 

positions. Paras need to demonstrate appropriate skills but I do not believe they need an AA. 

Also, I love the articulation/partnerships between Clark and WSU that give students access to 

a bachelors degree while staying local. 

We would be interested in hosting student teachers. In addition, we would like to offer pre-

school and early childhood programs if there were funding.  

It would be really helpful if the classes were offered before/after work hours so that the 

teachers could take advantage of them without too much interruption from work. 

Language acquisition, development, and (some) disorders, ASD/spectrum early detection 

and intervention. 

Having part of it online would be helpful since we are not always able to provide sub 

coverage for staff who need to leave for classes during the middle of the day.  

This would be very beneficial to us though. 

When WAC changes were made in August, I was hoping Clark would partner with DCYF and 

Early Achievers and Child Care Aware to form a program that could allow staff to continue to 

work for my company.  

I am very excited about this possibility for my program  

Please consider how you will address the ongoing struggle to fulfill STARS/credit hours for ECE 

professionals. Could you offer online courses to help them maintain these? We are partnering 

with OSPI to anticipate a move for school districts to release from DCYF and only be governed 

by OSPI. The WACs are not in line with what educational systems need/prefer. 

The cost as well as balance of trying to attend school and live everyday life. 

Our community needs a program to support professionalizing the field and supporting 

providers in getting an education focused on working with early learning that goes beyond an 

associates degree!   

You should consider the fact that many people we would refer to your program are people 

have already completed college or have started their college process. Some of the people 

have bachelors degrees but not in Early Childhood Education and are in need of college 

credits that are associated with education and children in order to be in our leadership 

positions.  

I am interested in this for myself. 

Many of our staff are interested in further education opportunities 

I am looking to go back to school to get my Bachelors in an ECE field.  

I am so excited about this program and am looking forward to be a part of it.  

any one working through this program would still need to be available to work full time. I don't 

have very many employees that can afford to work part time while they go to school. 

Online classes preferred! 

When creating this program please keep in mind that several people are already working in 

their career and would benefit from online classes and night time classes. 

I am super excited about this opportunity 

Scholarships grants 

I think it is a great idea and hope that it could be tied to Early Achievers Grant money that 

helps current employees affordably get degrees at their own pace. 

I do believe we will lose people with this degree to the public school system which has higher 

wages.  Also we will not attract people with this degree because of the same reason. 

Yes! This will be awesome!  

 

Page 47 of 75



BAS in Teaching—Clark College/37 

Responses 

If this could be an online program many more staff will be able to participate.  The challenge 

with our program is that staff who receive a teaching certificate leave early learning because 

our positions are classified and not certified, meaning that they leave to work in the K-12 

system that pays approximately three times as much.  This is a great opportunity.  Best of luck 

with your ventures. 

I think this is a wonderful idea. Classes would need to be online or in the evenings. Most child 

care centers are open from 6a-6p and teachers work full-time. 

It would be wonderful and highly desired to have special education be a component of the 

certification.   

The requirements for Early Childhood centers in Washington come from DCYF, but K-12 

requirements come from OSPI. They don't align with one another. 

 

Page 48 of 75



450.070 RESERVES AND FUND BALANCES  
 
Clark College will maintain a total of ten percent of its General Operating Budget within its Discretionary 
Fund Balances as a “Reserve” to allow for fluctuations in revenue and/or expenditure amounts in any 
given fiscal year. Dedicated Fund Balances will not be included in the College “Reserve.” Five percent of 
this reserve is set aside for the costs of disaster recovery to restore College operations and five percent 
is set aside for unexpected downturns in revenue such as reductions in state allocations or less than 
expected tuition revenue. Only the Board of Trustees can authorize a reserve of less than 10% for any 
one fiscal year at a time. Unless additional action is taken by the Board, the reserve will return to 10% 
the following fiscal year.  
 
In addition to maintaining ten percent of its General Operating Budget as reserves for disaster recovery 
and reductions in revenue, the College will maintain dedicated funds for the following:  
 

 Technology upgrades (Communications and Information Systems account) 
 Parking lot maintenance and repair 
 Certificate of Participation (COP) repayment in the event ASCC does not have funds to maintain 

the payment schedule  
 Litigation reserve to be used for settlements, legal fees, and other costs incurred as a 

consequence of litigation and claims not covered by the State Agency Self Insurance Liability 
Program.  

 Capital projects to be used for the costs of capital projects not covered by other funding sources  
 Program continuity reserve to fund costs of high priority programs that have been funded for a 

limited time by external sources, and  
 Other items or initiatives that have been identified as high priority in the College’s efforts to 

serve students, maintain accreditation and fulfill its mission and vision.  
 
Reserves and fund balance levels will be reviewed each year with the Board of Trustees.  Reserve 
amounts in excess of the 10% amount for items listed above will be recommended for Board approval 
annually.   
 
If future state-level budget cuts appear likely, it may be appropriate to bring the balances to a higher 
level, allowing the College to maintain valuable infrastructure during reduction periods.  
 
Board of Trustees’ approval is required for the use of these funds. In case of an emergency the president 
has the authority to draw on these funds and provide the Board with a report for ratification at its next 
meeting.  
 
The administration is authorized, provided there are discretionary fund balances, to use excess fund 
balances for expenditures that support the vision and mission of the College. In August of each year, the 
president will provide the Board with recommendations for using excess, discretionary fund balances to 
support the vision and mission of the College.  The Board may direct that all or a portion of discretionary 
fund balance be held in reserve or used to reimburse prior use of the Board’s 10% reserve. Discretionary 
fund balances are not available to fund ongoing operational needs.  
 
Definitions 

Page 49 of 75



The General Operating Budget is composed of the state allocation (Fund 101), tuition and operating fees 
(Fund 149), worker retraining (Fund 123), dedicated revenues (Fund 148), and running start (Fund 
145).  This budget is considered to represent the basic ongoing operations of the College.  
 
Dedicated Fund Balances are those portions of the fund balances that are committed or accounts with 
fund balances that are not discretionary due to their fund source or purpose.  Fund 145 – Grants and 
Contracts; Fund 147 – Local Capital; Fund 148 – Lab Fees, Continuing Education, and Resale; Fund 149 – 
Tuition and Fees; Fund 522 – ASCC; Fund 790 – Payroll; Fund 840 – Trust and Agency Funds;  
 
Fund 846 – Financial Aid Grants; Fund 849 – Student Loans; Fund 850 – Work Study; and Fund 860 – 
Long Term Student Loans represent funds in this category.  
 
Discretionary Fund Balances are those portions of the fund balances that have been generated by 
College operations and have not been committed to specific projects. The primary funds and activities in 
this category are Fund 145 – Running Start and Grant Overhead; Fund 147 – Local Capital (not yet 
obligated); Fund 148 – Excess Enrollment; Fund 440 – Central Stores; Fund 443 – Data Processing; Fund 
448 – Printing/Copy Machines; Fund 460 – Motor Pool; Fund 524 – Bookstore; Fund 528 – Parking; and 
Fund 570 – Auxiliary Services (Events, Food Service, Vending Machines, and Director of Auxiliary 
Services.)  
 

Page 50 of 75



COLUMBIA TECH CENTER PROPERTY MAP 

 

Page 51 of 75



 

 

Page 52 of 75



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Today’s date 
 
Wayne Doty 
Capital Budget Director 
State Board for Community and Technical Colleges 
1300 Quince Street SE 
Olympia, WA  98504-2495 
 
Re: Requests for Property 
 
Dear Wayne, 
 
On behalf of Clark Community College District #14, we the trustees of the board, are submitting this 
letter of support for two property requests presented to us on December 18, 2019.  The first request 
comes from C-Tran, the local public transportation agency.  The second comes from Pac-Trust, a major 
developer in the area.  Both requests impact state property on or near our Columbia Tech Center (CTC) 
building in east Vancouver.   
 
C-Tran 
The Board of Trustees supports C-Tran’s request for a 35-year no-cost ground lease for 2.5 acres of 
state-owned property to build a Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) terminus station just north of the college’s CTC 
building (please see attached map). 
 
Two years ago, C-Tran opened its first BRT line with three stops stationed near our main Vancouver 
campus.  This new line has proven to be enormously beneficial to the faculty, staff, students, and visitors 
who rely on public transportation to get to and from the college.  
 
C-Tran’s proposed second BRT line will run along Mill Plain Blvd., one of Vancouver’s busiest corridors.  
The preferred local option, recommended by a community task force that included Clark College, 
proposes siting the eastern BRT terminus within walking distance of CTC.  The expanded BRT service, as 
well as the proximity of the east-end station to CTC, will provide a number of benefits for the college, 
including: 
 

 Safe and convenient access to the new BRT line for the nearly 800 faculty, staff and students 
who work or take classes at CTC.    

 Connection to and from the main campus via a single, high-quality transit line with improved 
travel times and reliability. 

 Improved mobility for those who are unable to drive. 
 A viable and cost-effective transportation option for those who choose not to drive. 
 Reduced demand for limited parking at the CTC campus. 

 
 

Page 53 of 75



 

Mr. Wayne Doty 
Page 2 
Today’s date 
 
C-Tran has also agreed to cover costs associated with any property line adjustments required by the City 
of Vancouver.    
 
Pac-Trust 
The Board of Trustees supports Pac-Trust’s request to take ownership of the west parking lot at CTC to 
accommodate a new multi-use development, which will include office space, a restaurant, and a coffee 
shop, planned for construction immediately next to our campus.  In exchange, Pac-Trust will build a new 
lot of equal size on state-owned property north of our building and donate 71,000 square feet of land, 
valued at $710,000, for future college development at the CTC site (please see attached map). 
 
The Board believes that Pac-Trust’s proposal to essentially swap parking areas and provide land at no 
cost is a fair exchange that offers at least two important benefits for the college. 
 

1. Pac-Trust's new development will provide convenient access to a restaurant and coffee shop.  
Previous attempts to provide these services ourselves within CTC did not work out financially.  
As a result, faculty, staff and students must leave campus to find the nearest food and drink 
options.  Pac-Trust’s new development will now provide these options within easy walking 
distance of our facility.     

2. Pac-Trust's donation of property will support future development at CTC.  Given the high cost of 
land in east Vancouver, options for expanding the CTC campus are limited.  However, Pac-Trust’s 
offer to donate 71,000 square feet of property gives us a real opportunity to begin visioning for 
growth at CTC to meet our region’s critical educational and workforce training needs.  

 
The proposals from C-Tran and Pac-Trust have been thoroughly reviewed by college staff in facilities and 
safety and security.   No impacts on college operations or costs were identified or foreseen.   
 
The Board of Trustees supports the proposals from C-Tran and Pac-Trust and encourages the same from 
the state board.  If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at jjacobsen@clark.edu or 
President Sandra Fowler-Hill at sfowler-hill@clark.edu.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jane Jacobsen, Chair 
Clark College Board of Trustees 
 
Cc:          Sandra Fowler-Hill, President 
 Bob Williamson, Vice President of Administrative Services 
 
 
 

Page 54 of 75

mailto:jjacobsen@clark.edu
mailto:sfowler-hill@clark.edu


WPEA/UFCW Local 365, Clark College Unit 
 

Board Report for February 5, 2020 
 
 
MEETINGS 

 

WPEA Steward Meeting February 6, 2020 
WPEA Steward monthly conversation with Dr. Sandra Fowler-Hill February 18, 2020 
LMCC Meeting March 18, 2020  
 

COMMUNICATION 
 

Current contact for campus stewards: 
Co-Chief Shop Stewards 
Sarah Thorsen     360-992-2075 
Heather Adams     360-992-2900 
 
Communications Officers 
David Sims      360-992-2132  
Degundrea Harris     360-992-2382  
 
Shop Stewards  
Chris Layfield  360-992-2933 
Angela Dawson  360-992-2515 
Danielle Plesser 360-992-2273 
Becky Udwary   360-992-2740 
 
News and Congratulations to our Classified Staff: 

 Congratulations to the Fall 2019 Classified Excellence Award recipient: Bryton Williams, AA3 in 
Business & Health Sciences.  

 Shout out and congratulations for our staff excellence nominees: Brenda Shular (Purchasing & 
Central Services), Everett Yu (Grounds), Brandon Johnson (IT), John Condit (IT), Mike Silva (IT), Rick 
Bartz (IT), Peg Estes (Credential Evaluations), Mitch Scott (WPTE), Neil Fykerud (Transitional 
Studies), Thao Schmidt (HR). 

 We want to formally thank our staff for their hard work and commitment to students over the 
past few weeks. 

 Our deepest appreciation goes to our classified staff in purchasing and payroll as they have kept 
things running while working through challenging system changes. 

 
Meet & Greet with President Fowler-Hill 
We thank Dr. Fowler-Hill for coming to meet with classified staff on January 29, we appreciate the 
continued conversations and working with Dr. Fowler-Hill to find solutions that are mutually agreeable in 
these challenging times.  

 
Labor Management Communication 
WPEA stewards met with management in January to discuss: Positions that have been rif’d, unfilled, lost 
due to attrition and how the work has impacted staff that remain. Positive solutions to budget reductions 
and solutions to support morale. Unfilled classified positions and vacancies, interim positions, and demand 
to bargain business.   
 
Updates and Announcements 

 WPEA looks forward to continued and regular meetings with management and President Fowler-
Hill throughout the 2019-2020 academic year.  

 
 

Page 55 of 75



1 

                                          ASCC 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REPORT 

JANUARY, 2020. 
 
 
ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE 
Facilitate student learning by providing the conditions for intellectual growth through scholarship, 
discovery, application, creativity, and critical thinking.  

 Implement and institutionalize practices that increase academic performance, retention, and 
completion.  

 Create and sustain an inclusive and dynamic curriculum and environment that reflect our diverse 
college community. 

 Integrate active learning strategies within and across courses, disciplines, and programs with a 
global perspective.  

 Create and advance accessible, integrated, and technology-enriched learning environments. 

 Engage faculty, administrators, and staff in professional development experiences that enhance 
student learning.  

 Align curriculum with learning outcomes and apply outcomes assessment evidence to continually 
advance student learning. 

 
Progress 
College Accessibility 

 The Open Educational Resources (OER) which is one of the ASCC top priorities have 

made progress in the legislature. During the 2020 Regular Session, the HB 1702-

Informing students of low-cost course materials for community and technical college 

courses as a form of OER passed in the House of Representative by a vote of majority. 

The HB 1702 was introduced in the Senate House as of January 24th, 2020. The first 

reading of the bill has been referred to Higher Education and Workforce Development 

awaiting for the next steps and processes.  
 The Student Government had a meeting with the Foundation and the Bookstore 

Management on Monday 27th in the ASCC Conference Room. Attendees discussed the 

effective ways to reduce the cost of renting books here in the college. This discussion 

resulted in a tentative agreement to explore creating a book fund program where 

students can apply for funds based on specific criteria: income, field of study, general 

cost of the book, etc., support a lending library, work with the Library to see if 

additional resources can be provided, or work with faculty to reduce course material 

costs-specifically in core classes.  
 
 
SOCIAL EQUITY 

Facilitate student learning by providing the conditions that improve educational outcomes and eliminate 
systemic disparities among all groups.  

 Create and sustain an accessible and inclusive environment by utilizing principles of universal 
design and social justice so that all students can achieve equitable outcomes. 

 Demonstrate improved intercultural competency among employees and students through 
comprehensive professional development and curricular transformation. 

 Institutionalize hiring and retention practices that challenge systems of power, privilege, and 
inequity. 

Page 56 of 75



2 

 
Progress 
Professional Development 

 The ASCC team completed the Equity in Hiring Training on Tuesday 10th, January 

prior to the beginning of the ASCC interview for the Presidential Candidates.  

 The ASCC team completed the interviews for the Presidential Candidates: the first 

candidate interview for Dr. Sara Thompson Tweedy was held on Monday 13th January 

2020, at 2:00-3:00pm in the Clark College President’s Conference Room BRD 101. The 

second candidate interview for Dr. Karin Edwards was held on Thursday 16th, 

January 2020, at 2:00-3:00pm in the President’s Conference Room BRD 101. Finally, 

the third candidate interview for Dr. Lamata Mitchell was held on Tuesday 21st, 

January 2020, at 2:00-3:00pm in the Clark College President’s Conference Room BRD 
101.  

 The feedback for the strength and weaknesses of the candidate was submitted by the 

ASCC on Friday 24th, January 2020.  
 
ECONOMIC VITALITY 
Facilitate student learning by providing programs, services, and conditions that improve the economic well-

being of the students, college, and community. 

 Improve college affordability for students by expanding access to and information about financial 
resources, clarifying career and educational goals, providing pathways to success, improving college 
readiness, increasing financial literacy, and managing costs. 

 Align program offerings with regional workforce needs to include technical and work-readiness 
skills.   

 Align, expand, and enrich the relationships with regional industry leaders to increase internships, 
advisory committee participation, financial support for students’ education and programs, hiring 
pipelines, grant partnerships, mentorships, and apprenticeships. 

 Maximize the college’s return on investment by responsibly allocating available resources. 

 Leverage resources to create and sustain future innovations.   
 

Progress 
College Affordability 

 

 The ASCC Student Government team handed over materials and information to 

students detailing the availability of multiple resources on campus, directing students 

to respective places for help and service, and advocated for different leadership 

opportunities offered by the Student Government in partnership with the Student Life 

Office.  

 The ASCC-Student government leaders and the Activities Programming Board 

worked together in distributing over 3,000 items such as snacks and school supplies 

during the welcome week of winter quarter. 

 The ASCC Vice President created and facilitated a social media spirit week that 

promoted student engagement and interaction for the whole first week of winter 

quarter. Students who participated in the online interactions through social media 

were awarded gifts to the bookstore or the culinary.  

 

ENVIRONMENTAL INTEGRITY 

Page 57 of 75



3 

Facilitate student learning by providing the conditions that continually improve the college’s physical, 
virtual, and social environment. 

 Incorporate environmental sustainability priorities into all college systems.  

 Improve the college’s physical and virtual environment to maximize access and appropriate use of 
space and technology. 

 Integrate principles of mutual respect, collaboration, clear communication, and inclusivity in all 
interactions. 

 
Progress  
College Accessibility 
 

 The ASCC Club Coordinator completed club orientations whereby 9 students became 

new officers for existing clubs.  

 The ASCC Club Coordinator reported that two students have begun the process of 

chartering new clubs. 

Page 58 of 75



Page 59 of 75



Page 60 of 75



Page 61 of 75



Page 62 of 75



Page 63 of 75



Page 64 of 75



Page 65 of 75



Page 66 of 75



MISSION: Clark College, in service to the community, guides individuals to achieve their educational and 
professional goals.

Academic 
Excellence

Three-Year 
Completion 
Rate: 31%

First-to-Second 
Quarter Retention: 

83% (1 yr avg)

Programs Completed 
Assessment Project: 

90%

Programs Made 
Evidence-Based 
Improvements: 
Not Available*

First-Year Math 
Completion: 
30% (1 yr avg)

Strategic Priorities: Student Engagement and Outcomes; Accreditation; Boschma Farms

Social Equity

HU* Student 
Completion 
Rate: 25%

Course materials 
and college 

technology is 
accessible: 67%

Percent Employees 
Of Color Equal to 
Students of Color: 

16% vs 31%

Strategic Priorities: Professional Development; Hiring and Retention; Student Engagement and Outcomes; College Climate

Economic 
Vitality

Programs Defined as 
High-Demand: 

65%

Reduced Cost of 
Education: 

Not Available*

Cost of Books, 
Materials & Fees: 

$709

Graduates with living-
wage employment: 

64% (Prof-Tech Only)

Strategic Priorities: External Partnerships; Boschma Farms; Student Engagement and Outcomes; Long-term Budget

Environmental 
Integrity

Sustainability of 
Facilities: 2.4

Student Climate: 
4.07

Employee Climate: 
5.01

Strategic Priorities: College Climate; ctcLink; Accreditation; Boschma 
Farms; President.

Average Student 
Loans: 

$1,533(D) / $2,149(I)

HU* Student First-
to-Second Quarter 

Retention: 
79% (1 yr avg)

LEGEND
Meets or exceeds desired outcome; continuous effort 

needed to maintain or improve even further.
Does not meet desired outcome; action is needed to 

meet goal.
Does not meet, well below desired outcome and 

immediate action is needed.

Course 
Success Rate:
82% (1 yr avg)

Something changed. Rate or percentage updated.

Student Learning

Align Programs Employment

Physical, Virtual and Social Environments

Cost of Education

Eliminate racial disparities

Completion

Intercultural and Multicultural Competencies
Student 

Indicator:

In-Development

Employee 
Indicator:

In-Development

*Historically Underrepresented

Page 67 of 75



COMPLETION 
 JANUARY 2020 

Monthly Highlights 

 The Guided Pathways Framework & CommunicaƟons Project Manager was hired. This posiƟon has been 
tasked with translaƟng the current program maps into a web presence that is easy to navigate and 
provides a seamless guided pathways experience for our students.  In the last two weeks, significant work 
has been done to explore the best layout to present Guided Pathways adhering our accessibility 
standards. 

 
‐2019‐2020 Board PrioriƟes: Student Engagement and Outcomes 

Clark College, in service to the community, guides individuals to achieve their  
educational and professional goals – including certificate and degree completion – by  
accomplishing its core theme objectives of academic excellence, social equity,  
economic vitality, and environmental integrity.  

*Four quarters/one‐year has not occurred yet. 

Page 68 of 75



STUDENT LEARNING 
JANUARY 2020 

Clark College’s degrees and certificates awarded are the result of a culmination of 
learning. The college aligns its curriculum with learning outcomes and applies 
evidence to continually advance student learning. 

Monthly Highlights 
  

 Outcomes assessment faculty mentors have reviewed 100% of all submitted instructional program 
assessment proposals.  To increase communication  with faculty members, a summative report will 
be available to the college community which will identify strengths and opportunities to improve 
the assessment proposals.   

 
 
 
 2019‐2020 Board Strategic Priorities: Accreditation—Student Learning Outcomes  

Percent of full‐Ɵme 

faculty who parƟcipated 

in outcomes 

assessment projects: 

88% 

Percent of programs that 

reported on equity in 

outcomes assessment 

projects: 

58% 
*Full reports available in spring 

Percent of programs that 

completed evidence‐

based 

improvements this 

year 
*Full reports available in 

spring 

Page 69 of 75



SOCIAL EQUITY 
 JANUARY 2020 

Clark College facilitates student learning by providing the conditions that improve  
educational outcomes and eliminate systemic disparities among all groups.  Two strategies 
the college has implemented relate to improving employee cultural competencies through  
professional development and hiring employees reflective of the college’s diverse students. 

Eliminate DispariƟes in Three‐Year CompleƟon Rate for Historically Underrepresented Students 

Monthly Highlights 

 

 A United States Department of EducaƟon TRIO Student Support Services (SSS) grant was submiƩed, which, if 
funded, will provide individualized support services for SSS‐eligible students (first‐generaƟon, low‐income, and/
or students with disabiliƟes; with demonstrated academic need) to increase college retenƟon and graduaƟon; 
transfer rate to four‐year insƟtuƟons; foster insƟtuƟonal climate supporƟve for eligible students; and improve 
financial and economic literacy of students.  

 

2019‐2020 Board PrioriƟes: Student Engagement and Outcomes  

Page 70 of 75



INTERCULTURAL AND MULTI-
CULTURAL COMPETENCIES 

  JANUARY 2020 

Clark College facilitates student learning by providing the conditions that improve  
educational outcomes and eliminate systemic disparities among all groups.  Two strategies 
the college has implemented relate to improving employee cultural competencies through  
professional development and hiring employees reflective of the college’s diverse students. 

Monthly Highlights 

 
 The Washington State Governor’s Office of Indian Affairs and the Cowlitz tribe hosted the Washington 

State’s Government to Government training to 24 leaders from extended leadership teams of both Clark 
College and Clark College FoundaƟon on January 8, 2020.  The learning outcomes of this training are 
understanding the historical perspecƟve of tribes; knowledge of the legal issues that have confronted tribes 
over Ɵme; and awareness of the concepts related to tribal sovereignty and tribal government structures.  
The intended impact of this training is to understand how Clark College can more effecƟvely collaborate with 
tribal governments.  

 This year the college is supporƟng three Employees of Color to parƟcipate in the Administrators of Color 
Leadership Program, a state‐wide supported program to increase the pipeline of People of Color in key 
leadership posiƟons.  In addiƟon, the college is supporƟng a cohort of Faculty of Color is parƟcipaƟng in the 
state‐wide Cross‐InsƟtuƟon Faculty of Color Mentorship Program.  

 InstrucƟonal leadership redesigned the job posƟng templates to aƩract diverse applicants in Ɵme for the 
faculty hiring cycles. 

 
2019‐2020 Board PrioriƟes: Professional Development, Hiring and RetenƟon 

 
Student Intercultural and  

Multicultural Competencies Indicator: 
 

In-Development 
 

 
Employee Intercultural and  

Multicultural Competencies Indicator: 
 

In-Development 

Page 71 of 75



ALIGN PROGRAMS 
JANUARY 2020 

Clark College, in service to the community, guides individuals to achieve their educa-
tional and professional goals. Through the college’s focus on student outcomes, the 
college aims to connect students to their long-term educational goals. For Clark Col-
lege students these goals are most often employment and/or transferring to another 
higher education institution.  

Monthly Highlights 

  

 The Boschma Farms visioning consultant, Lisa Keohokalole Schauer, President of PointNorth 
Consulting, continues to meet one‐on‐one with each member of the Boschma Farms Visioning 
Taskforce.  The purpose of these meetings is to gather more information about the three 
components of the Clark College Boschma Farms campus design: Advanced Manufacturing Center, 
Workforce Training Site, and Commercial Development. The information gathered from these 
meetings will be used as the starting point  for the first half‐day planning session, scheduled for 
the Tuesday, February 18, that will ultimately result in a comprehensive vision for the Clark 
College at Boschma Farms campus.    

 
 2019‐2020 Board Priorities: External Partnerships, Boschma Farms  

Page 72 of 75



EMPLOYMENT 
JANUARY 2020 

Clark College, in service to the community, guides individuals to achieve their educational 
and professional goals. Through the college’s focus on student outcomes, the college aims 
to connect students to their long-term educational goals. For Clark College students these 
goals are most often employment and/or transferring to another higher education institu-
tion. 

Monthly Highlights 

 The Clark College Welding Department established a contractual agreement with Vigor 
Industrial to 1) offer for‐credit training certificates for their incumbent workers, 2) offer 
guaranteed interviews to graduating welding students to address the expected significant job 
growth, and 3) provide job placement opportunities for Clark’s welding students.  

 

 

 2019‐2020 Board PrioriƟes: External Partnerships 

Employment Outcomes for Professional Technical Program Graduates,  
Nine Months AŌer CompleƟon 

Page 73 of 75



PHYSICAL, VIRTUAL, AND SOCIAL  
ENVIRONMENTS 

 JANUARY 2020 

Monthly Highlights 

 About 300 new students par cipated in Winter Quarter New Student orienta on. Orienta on includes 

general informa on about being a successful student, as well as career, financial wellness and advising 

presenta ons. It concludes with students registering for their classes.  

  

 

2019‐2020 Board PrioriƟes: Student Engagement and Outcomes 

Clark College, in service to the community, guides individuals to achieve their  
educational and professional goals – including certificate and degree completion – by  
accomplishing its core theme objectives of academic excellence, social equity,  
economic vitality, and environmental integrity.  

Sustainability of Facilities, based 
on Clark County Green Survey Employee Climate:  

Mutual respect, collaboration, clear 
communication, and inclusivity  

Winter 2017: 5.01  
(Meets threshold of 5.0) 

 

Student Climate:  

Mutual respect, collaboration, clear 
communication, and inclusivity  

Winter 2018: 4.07  
Winter 2017: 4.02 

(Meets threshold of 4.0) 

Items Rated less than 5.0 threshold: 
 Areas and departments throughout 

the college work cooperatively (4.73) 
 When other areas and departments 

across the college make decisions 
that impact my work, I am able to 
offer input before the decision is 
made (3.62) 

 Criteria by which decisions are made 
are clearly communicated (4.39) 

Items Rated less than 4.0 threshold: 
 How much has Clark College contrib-

uted to your knowledge, skills and 
personal growth in each of the follow-
ing areas: Working effectively with 
others (3.88) 

 During my first quarter at Clark, I re-
ceived the information and services I 
needed to be a successful student 
(3.81) 

Page 74 of 75



FTES Budgeted FTES
% of Budgeted 

FTES
State-supported 6,520* 6,908                   94%

State FTES 4,578                     4,892                    94%
Running Start 1,926                     2,016                    96%

* This includes 16 non-Running Start contract FTES in state-supported classes.

Allocated State 
FTES in State 

Classes State FTES Difference % Difference
Summer 2019 2,719                     2,068                 (651)                     -24%
Fall 2019 6,731                     5,033                 (1,698)                  -25%
Winter 2020 6,424                     4,578                 (1,846)                  -29%
Spring 2020 6,051                     

Budgeted FTES 
in State Classes

State and 
Running Start 

FTES Difference % Difference
Summer 2019 2,070                     2,068                    (2)                         0%
Fall 2019 7,213                     7,140                    (73)                       -1%
Winter 2020 6,908                     6,503                    (405)                     -6%
Spring 2020 6,504                     

Total Enrollment 
to Date 2019-2020

Projected 
Enrollments

% of Projected  
Enrollments

Contract Corporate 640                       540                      119%
Community Ed 5,064                     6,675                    76%

as of January 30, 2020 (Day 18 of Qtr)
Winter 2020 Quarter

Clark College Interim Enrollment Report

Academic Year 2019-2020 

Academic Year 2019-2020 

Academic Year 2019-2020 

Winter 2020

Page 75 of 75


	Coverpage
	Agenda
	Call To Order/Agenda Review - Chair Jacobsen
	Introductions - Interim President Fowler-Hill 
	Transforming Lives Winner  - Jorge Maravilla

	Action Items - Consent Agenda - Chair Jacobsen 
	#1 - December 18, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 
	12.18.19 BOT Minutes DRAFT.docx

	#2 - January 13, 2020 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
	1.13.2020 Special BOT Minutes DRAFT.docx

	#3 - January 16, 2020 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
	1.16.2020 Special BOT Minutes DRAFT.docx

	#4 - January 21, 2020 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
	1.21.2020 Special BOT Minutes DRAFT.docx

	#5 - New BAS Degree 
	BAS-Teaching Statement of Need Clark College.docx

	#6 - Reserves and Fund Balances 
	Reserves and Fund Balances.docx

	#7 - C-Tran/PacTrust 
	Columbia Tech Center Property Map.docx
	DRAFT - letter from BOT.docx


	Audience Statement - Chair Jacobsen 
	Constituent Reports 
	AHE - Suzanne Southerland 
	WPEA - Dee Harris 
	WPEA Report.docx

	ASCC - Evans Kaame 
	ASCC Report.docx

	Foundation - Lisa Gibert 
	Foundation Report.pdf


	Reports from Board Members - Chair Jacobsen 
	President's Report - Interim President Fowler-Hill 
	Student Affairs Presentation - Kim Brewer and Victoria Walters, Enrollment Navigators 
	Student Success - Jovan Merceron 

	Program Presentation - Dalila Paredes, Director of MESA 
	Scorecards 
	January Scorecards.pdf
	Enrollment Report.pdf


	Next Meeting 
	Executive Session - Chair Jacobsen 
	Adjournment - Chair Jacobsen 

